REGULAR SESSION, COMMON COUNCIL, December 9, 2024

Be it Remembered that the Common Council of the City of Plymouth, Indiana, met in regular
session on December 9, 2024. The meeting was held in the Council Chambers, on the second floor
of the City Building, 124 N. Michigan St., Plymouth, Indiana, and was called to order at 6:46 p.m.

Councilman Ecker offered prayer, and Mayor Listenberger led the Pledge of Allegiance.

Mayor Listenberger presided over Council members Duane Culp, Don Ecker Jr., Randy
Longanecker, Shiloh Carothers Milner, and Dave Morrow, who were physically present. Council |
members Kayla Krathwohl and Linda Starr were absent. City Attorney Jeff Houin and Clerk-
Treasurer Lynn Gorski were also present. The public was able to see and hear the meeting through
Microsoft Teams.

Council members Ecker and Morrow moved and seconded to approve the minutes of the

regular session of the Common Council on November 25, 2024, as presented. The motion carried.

NOTICE TO TAXPAVERS OF PROPOSED ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATIONS .. P AR
Mg Fund Nama: 9 101 O&,

faxpayars of the Gity of Piymcuth, Marshall County, Major Butge: Class fisation:
catg of the Camman Couned at e regulal aruent
g bﬂh cf the le; Bu!drg 2nd Fioor. 124 M Fund Mama:

s shajor Budge Classfication:

e Bridge ReniviilationiAsnair Projso)
5 & Charges.

Fund Mama: Commurity Improvemant
tajor Budge: Classfication:  Other Services 5 Uhargas

Amaunt

Fund blams:

tajor Budget Classication
Aot

& Charges

Council members Ecker and Longanecker moved and seconded to open the public hearing
for the Additional Appropriations Resolution. The motion carried.

Gorski stated there were four additional appropriations and this would be the final additional
appropriation of this year. She stated the first would be for Community Improvement and that was
the fund that pays for the Commercial Revitalization Rebates. She explained an additional $21,000
was needed and that this would be the second time they needed additional appropriations for this
fund. She stated these were for rebates over and above what was budgeted for the 2024 budget. She
stated the next two appropriations would be for the Plymouth Redevelopment Authority (RDA). She
explained that the State Board of Accounts (SBOA) now requested that the city make Annual
Financial Reports (AFR) for the RDA, that these were two different funds that the bonds and trustee
fees are paid out of. She stated the first one in the City Building Project Sinking fund was in the
amount of $310,025 for Bond & Interest payments and the second was in the City Building Project
O&R fund in the amount of $1,000 for the Trustee fee. She stated the final additional appropriation
was for the E. LaPorte Street Rehabilitation/Repair Project in the amount of §1,766 for the city’s
portion of the grant that was over and above the amount that INDOT approved.

Ecker asked if that would close the E. LaPorte Street project.

Gorski replied that it would close the project as far as she was aware.



REGULAR SESSION, COMMON COUNCIL, December 9, 2024

Mayor Listenberger asked Houin to explain what they were planning to do for the fagade
grants (commercial revitalization), so they understood better what was available to them.

Houin stated that one of the Comprehensive Plan subcommittees had been working on the
fagade grant program and they were looking to make a couple changes to the grant. He stated that
one of the key changes would be to set an annual cap on the amount to be distributed. He stated
when the budget would be prepared in late Summer or in the Fall that they would know what was
budgeted for the following year and then that would be the limit. He stated that once it was spent,
that would be all that could be applied to that program in that year without appropriating more. He
stated that they were working on a couple of the changes that would come to them in early January
as an ordinance to amend that program and they were looking to make some changes to the fund
agreement with the Community Foundation. He stated that he was not able to make it yet so the
expectation would be early January.

Mayor Listenberger asked if they would be looking at additional appropriations again in
2025 for that fund.

Houin replied that they already budget a certain amount for that program and there
historically had never been a cap on it. He stated that some years, the council had not awarded the
full amount, but other years, like 2024, they had awarded more than what was budgeted for it. He
stated there was never a cap and it was never consistent so that would be one of the things they
would be looking to do so they could be more consistent with applying the budgeted amount. He
stated it would make it more clear to the applicants for what was available. He stated they would
also change the way that some of the awards were made so that they could have a greater impact
while staying within that budget limit.

Longanecker asked how they were coming up with that cap. He asked if it was an average
over the years.

Houin replied that it would be whatever was budgeted. He added that he was not sure what
that number would be. He stated as they worked on the budget for the following year, they could
review historically and how much the fund was earning. He believed that much of the money was
invested in a fund at the Community Foundation, so it came down to what the distribution was. He
stated that part of the idea was that the very simplest way would be in June, when the Community
Foundation issues the distribution notices, that it would give them time to budget that amount for the
following year. He stated that it would be based upon that investment return.

Ecker asked if it was under consideration to change the cap amount that they allowed over

past years per award.




REGULAR SESSION, COMMON COUNCIL, December 9, 2024

Houin replied that it was currently 20% up to $25,000. He stated the proposal would be an
allowed 50% of the project price up to a $10,000 maximum. He stated that historically, very few of
the grant awards had been over $10,000, but they have had a few outliers, especially this year, which
caused them to go way over what was budgeted. He stated that historically, most of the applications
were for less than $10,000 so they could stay within that cap while awarding 50% of the project
price up to $10,000, which would allow for a greater impact on the project. He stated that it would
spread it out and allow for greater impact on more projects.

Ecker asked while they transitioned to this new program, if they would be able to have a
running balance with the budget. Gorski agreed.

Houin replied that it may be like the way department heads monitor their budget lines
currently, which shows how much was spent and how much was remaining every month. He stated it
could be tracked so they know. He stated that every time an application was submitted, they should
be able to identify what was left in the budget.

Mayor Listenberger stated that he was happy that it was explained so that they could have a
better handle going forward. He stated he was curious about what that distribution normally was. He
asked if we knew how much it historically was.

Houin replied that Gorski would have that information as she had been sharing that
information with the committee all along.

Mayor Listenberger stated that since he had been on council, they had been unsure of the
available funds so this would give them a firm amount.

Morrow asked what the original budget was for rebate fund.

Mayor Listenberger and Gorski were unsure at that time without reference.

Morrow asked if this was the first appropriation that they had done for this line item.

Gorski replied that it was not and that it was at least the second appropriation this year.

Culp asked what the appropriation was for $310,025.

Gorski replied that it was bond fees for the revitalization of the city building. She stated they
would be paying that bond until 2027.

Ecker asked for clarification that the SBOA was requiring this change.

Gorski replied that SBOA was requiring this change for the Redevelopment Authority to put
this into an AFR.

Council members Ecker and Longanecker moved and seconded to close the public hearing

for the Additional Appropriations Resolution. The motion carried.




REGULAR SESSION, COMMON COUNCIL, December 9, 2024

Morrow complimented the Parks and Street Departments on the Christmas decorations and
that they were beautiful. He stated as it was getting dark earlier, he really appreciated the yield lights
at the intersection of Baker and Randolph Streets. He believed as a council, they should approve
money to put lights in every place there was a Greenways Trail crossing that was not an intersection.
He stated that it really informs drivers that there may be pedestrians in the area.

Gorski commented that because those lights are flashing 24/7 that people ignore them.
Longanecker agreed. Gorski stated that she believed if it was something that we should do that it
would need either an on/off button or a push button to make it start flashing so that cars are more
aware.

Longanecker added that people have been flying through them without hesitation.

Mayor Listenberger asked Street Superintendent Jimmy Marquardt if they had the
technology on those devices to do that.

Marquardt replied that those devices were solar powered and always on. He stated that they
had the ability to turn them off whenever they wanted to, but they were always on. He stated there
was technology out there as to where they could.

Longanecker stated there was the HAWK Pedestrian Crossing that was typical in school
zones, and they are often a lot more money.

Marquardt stated that they were often referenced at the Complete Streets Committee
meetings.

Mayor Listenberger stated that much of what Morrow had said had been identified already
and they wished to do more of that. He asked if those two flashing yield signs came about from
Michiana Area Council of Governments (MACOG).

Marquardt replied that it was from MACOG and the School Corporation.

Longanecker stated his interpretation was that it would be for soccer traffic, but it had just
continued. He stated he agreed with Gorski’s comments as he saw people ignoring the light every
morning.

Mayor Listenberger touched on Morrow’s comments about the Christmas decorations and
stated they also had a parade that was well attended. He stated it was cold, but their Christmas trees
were looking nice down at River Park Square. He thanked all those involved.

City Attorney Houin introduced Ordinance No. 2024-2235, An Ordinance to Amend

Ordinance No. 2024-2229R, the 2025 Salary Ordinance on second reading.




REGULAR SESSION, COMMON COUNCIL, December 9, 2024

‘ Council members Ecker and Morrow moved and seconded to approve Ordinance No. 2024-
2235, An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance No. 2024-2229R, the 2025 Salary Ordinance on second
reading. The motion passed by roll call vote.
Councilmembers in Favor: Culp, Ecker, Longanecker, Milner, Morrow
Councilmembers Opposed: N/A
Councilmembers Absent: Krathwohl, Starr
City Attorney Houin introduced Ordinance No. 2024-2235, An Ordinance to Amend
Ordinance No. 2024-2229R, the 2025 Salary Ordinance on third reading.
Council members Morrow and Ecker moved and seconded to approve Ordinance No. 2024-
2235, An Ordinance to Amend Ordinance No. 2024-2229R, the 2025 Salary Ordinance on third
reading. The motion passed by roll call vote.
Councilmembers in Favor: Culp, Ecker, Longanecker, Milner, Morrow
Councilmembers Opposed: N/A

Councilmembers Absent: Krathwohl, Starr

ORDINANCE NO, 2024-2235

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND
ORDINANCE NO. 2024-2220R, THE 2025 SALARY ORDINANCE

Statement of Purgiese sl Intent

i lnt’TwuunlL o uhnlunhm W
)

Additional .\'swuuln Pay in lhl. Polie l\x\muwm

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Common Covneil of the City of’
Plymoch, ludinna as follows:

Section 1. Within the provisions of Ondinance No. 2024-7229R arklressing the Ofice o the
Kayor, Department of L, Park & Reereatton Depanment and Poliee Depatment sabiries

are as fallows:

OFFICE OF THE MAYOR

Promotion of the City Coordinator @10 Py
DEPARTMENT OF LAW
Iiman Resourses Minager $36,439.20 oy

PARK & RECREATION DEPARTMENT
Tool and Kesroiun Direclor o sS0TIRSe o g

ATTHST:

i e " % ) )& o
cor i ar that s (i endpvide ; 5 z
o faboviog sevies (nky centcal frasi ity Em Gt s oncss
Cortficution

Promned by i1¢ (o i Magor of (i City of Mymnth, Indias n tie 9% day of Dccembee
W, u_ Koo v'clock g

Section 2. The fint payrol for the ahve cmployeos begioning the (it payral) in Jomiary
2025, will rellevt the rate of pay establishied by i moendmen. All othes espects vt —
Urdinanes No. 2024-2229 will remais in fisl) fore and effest. - >
nn M. Gorski, Clerk-Tremmner

PASSET 7 P this 9 day of D . 2024
PASSED ARD ADOPTTD this 9 day of December, 2024, Approved yod signed by e this 7 day of Decssnber, 2024,

- 4 =l Wi
City Attorney Houin introduced the 2025 Agreement for Transportation Services.
Ecker asked if the amount was the same as prior years. Houin agreed.
Council members Ecker and Milner moved and seconded to approve the 2025 Agreement for
Transportation Services as presented. The motion passed by roll call vote.
Councilmembers in Favor: Culp, Ecker, Longanecker, Milner, Morrow
Councilmembers Opposed: N/A

Councilmembers Absent: Krathwohl, Starr




REGULAR SESSION, COMMON COUNCIL, December 9, 2024

AGREEMENT FOR TRANSFORTATION SERVICES 3 SQELMALML@LSM
In cxchange for of the obligations of this by
This agreement is entered into by and between the CITY OF PLYMOUTH. a municipal oum\um(nymmmouammmnxmummm
corparation of the State of Indiana acting by and through its duly clecied Camman payable in af loast semi-anaual increments throughout the calendar yoar 2025
Council, hercinafter reforred 10 as “the City.” and the MARSHALL COUNTY Otder Adules shall prepase and submit to the Offfice of the Clerk-Treasurer o
COUNCIL ON AGING. INC.. an Indisna not-for-profit corportion with Federal duly executed clsim in proper form. with any other requested
Identification Nember 35-1522711. hcsunafhumhmedmh‘()ldal\ﬂ.lm byﬂx(‘h:k—t‘w
Ty o 6. BINDING AGH ENT
TMHWMIhMgwth@mzhumw
Older Adults manages a program entitled “Marshall County Public ‘Transportation conditions and both parties acknowledge each is duly authorized 1o enter into,
Program” which in part provides pantially subsidized public transportation fo citizens of affectate and carry out this Agrcement pirmant 10 mid tema Befiher ths

Agreement por any interest therein may be assigned by either party without
the prior written consent of the party being first had and obtained.

TERM OF AGREEMENT

Marshall County, including citizens of Plymouth. For several years. the City has
contributed to the funding of this public transportation program. The Ciry desires o
continue with its financial support of public transportation for the citizens of Plymouth

~

2nd Ofder Adults desire to maintain the program into 2025, It is ngroed the cffective date of this Agreement shall be January 1. 2025, and
) hat this Agroement shall be in full force and cffect for the entire calenda
NOW. THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and subject 1o the teyms of znzl_;_ e . = ossace TR & il

and conditions listed below, the pasties agree s follows:

58 IN WITNESS WPII"RI'UF the parties have hereunto set their hands and seals this ___
of, 2024,

Older Adult agrees to mainmin the Marshall County Public ‘V'eansportation ay

I'mgmm i its present form which consists of pmwdmg public transportation e

to citizons of Plymouth for a nominal and subsidized fo

2. VOLUNTARY AUDIT AT

ADVANCED NOTICE

Older Adults agrees o allow the City, or the City's designee, to andit all ATTEST:

revords of Older Adults refated to the Marshall County Public ‘Franspostation

Program at all reasonable times and with reasonable advance notice, to ensure

that Plymouth citizens are being adequately served by the program relative to RIS Wt Al |
the manetary subsidy provided by City. Lynn M. Goski, Cleck-Treasurer

Robert Lisienberger, Mayor

w

NON-AGENCY RELATIONSHIP “OLDER ADULTS™
The partics specifically agree that one is et the ageat of the sher. In other
words, Qlder Adults acknowledges that. in mazaging and providing services

1o the citizens of Plymouth. it is neithes an azont of he City. nos i any way Sigeanire.
takes divcction fiom the City in it management of the program, or Qlder .
Adules supervi of and velatorship with e dnv sdling o0 W PomsedNamee
citizon ridors. o Gk ey Presidess, Boand of Directors
Marshall County Council na Aging, lnc.
4. HOLD HARMLESS

Older Adults agress t bold he City hanmiess from any cause of action arising  AUTEST:

Gorski stated that the City had received a donation from Plymouth Foundry in the amount of
$1,250.00 to be used for Sponsorship Decals on Police Cars. She asked if they wished to accept the
donation with restricted terms, conditions and purpose attached to the donation. She added that the
donation would be receipted into the City Monetary Gift Fund.

Council members Ecker and Milner moved and seconded to approve the donations as
presented. The motion carried.

City Attorney Houin introduced Ordinance No. 2024-2236, An Ordinance to Amend Fees
Regarding City-Owned Electric Vehicle Charging Stations on first reading.

City Attorney Houin introduced Ordinance No. 2024-2237, An Ordinance to Allow
Commercial Activity on Sidewalks on first reading.

Houin stated this came out of a committee with Councilman Morrow, Councilman
Longanecker, and Councilwoman Starr. He stated this came about from the discussion about
obstructions on the sidewalk. He explained that this ordinance tries to make it as simple as possible
but still allow sidewalk activity downtown while complying with the code requirements that were
previously mentioned.

Longanecker stated that we do have some flowerpots and we can work with the businesses if
they desire to place items outside their establishments.

Superintendent Marquardt has one concern which is placement of items close to the curb. If

items are not removed before it is time for snow removal such items may be damaged either by the




REGULAR SESSION, COMMON COUNCIL, December 9, 2024

State Highway with plowing or our Street Department removing piles of snow. Marquardt requested
that the items be removed, and the items are still there and decorated for the holiday season.

Building Commissioner Manuwal stated that when he spoke to the owner of the Brass Rail
they stated that they planned on having the items removed by Fall.

Houin will review this ordinance before it comes back for second and third readings.

City Attorney Houin introduced Ordinance No. 2024-2238, An Ordinance Regarding Permit
and Application Fees for the City of Plymouth on first reading.

There was discussion on the other fees that were listed in Ordinance No. 2024-2238. Houin
stated the only fees that are currently in the ordinance to amend are associated with the Building
Commissioner, and all other fees will be addressed at a later date.

City Attorney Houin introduced Resolution No. 2024-1134, Additional Appropriations
Resolution.

Council members Ecker and Milner moved and seconded to approve Resolution No. 2024-
1134, Additional Appropriations Resolution. The motion passed by roll call vote.

Councilmembers in Favor: Culp, Ecker, Longanecker, Milner, Morrow

Councilmembers Opposed: N/A

Councilmembers Absent: Krathwohl, Starr

Mayor Listenberger introduced David Rainey with Veridus Group to discuss the public
~ safety project of either building new or remodeling the existing fire and police stations.

Rainey stated that the Veridus Group is out of Indianapolis and works across the state.
Veridus consists of three groups, Owner’s Technical Representation, Community & Economic
Development and Civil Site Development. They work with the owner, architect and construction
manager. Phase I is the Project Development Service that we are discussing here tonight with a cost
of $40,000.00. This is all done to develop a program of the conceptual cost of the project. Veridus
Group helps guide through the whole process from development, pre-construction, construction and
pricing. After Phase I, is complete with the decisions of whether we recommend remodel or
replacement of the facilities then we would identify the costs of Phases Il - IV, to deliver the entire
project. Veridus has a lot of experience in public safety, both police and fire. The first Phase will be

a six-to-seven-month period for understanding the project.




REGULAR SESSION, COMMON COUNCIL, December 9, 2024

VERIDUS

GROUP

OWNER'S COMMUNITY & Civil
TECHNICAL ECONOMIC Site
REPRESENTATION DEVELOPMENT Development

+ Cormmunity: g « Site Planning and Design

« Stormwater Analysis

+ Project Managemenf Studies

« Utility Design
+ Capital Program Management « Strategic Planning - Sustainable Design
» Construction Process » Workforce Development

+ Crading and Drainage
Management ' ge

. P3 S
P3 Negotiations » SWPPP

+ Building Operations Strategy al Estate /

- Maintenance Planning Redevelopment

* Phase | - Project Development Services
= Key- Define Vision / Development Principles
» |dentify Project Delivery Method
Stakeholder Engagement

* Phase Il - Pre-Construction Services
Design Development
Public Engagement
Key - Perform Risk Assessment
Key - Value Engineering

* Phase Il - Construction Period Services
« Key- Data Management / Schedule and Cost Controls / QAQC

* Phase IV - Commissioning / Closeout & Warranty
* Key- OFE / Project Manual / Last Mile®
* On-Going Management

Listenberger questioned if this initial phase would include bringing in an architect for the
$40,000.00.

Rainey stated that no, the $40,000.00 is their fee, there would be additional fees for an
architect for renderings.

Longanecker asked for clarification on their staffing regarding engineers, architects, and
construction managers and if these would all be outsourced.

Rainey stated that the CM would be hired by the City or through Veridus with the fees built
into one of the Phases.

Listenberger asked if we would need to engage an architect during this discovery stage.

Rainey replied that the City would need to engage an architect at an additional cost of
between $40,000 and $60,000.

Morrow stated Phase I is bigger than he initially thought it was.




REGULAR SESSION, COMMON COUNCIL, December 9, 2024

Listenberger though the architect was included with the Phase I proposal.

Ecker proposes this be tabled for a future expenditure. We need to figure out where we are
going to pay for this. Longanecker agreed.

Rainey stated that Veridus’ goal is to help deliver a very complicated project that you have
needed for a long time.

Houin updated the board on ONE Marshall County and stated there is not much to update on
at this time, they are still focused on committee work.

Houin updated the board on the Comprehensive Plan Committees. He stated we had our first
annual recap celebration and meeting. MACOG is working on an online progress tracker and
highlights what has been accomplished and what we are still working on. Eventually this will be
linked to the city’s website so that the public can see it anytime.

Council members Ecker and Milner moved and seconded to accept the following
communications:

Minutes of the Board of Public Works and Safety meeting of November 25, 2024
December 9, 2024 Check Register

November 26, 2024 Technical Review Committee Minutes

November 4, 2024 Park Board Minutes

November 6, 2024 Plan Commission Minutes
October 1, 2024 Board of Zoning Appeals Minutes

The motion carried.

There being no further business to come before the Council, Council members Longanecker
_and Morrow moved and seconded to adjourn. Mayor Listenberger declared the meeting adjourned at

7:49 p.m. .
_Fyhn M. Gorski
Clerk-Treasurer
APPROVED

]SS

Ro}% Listenf%;ger, Mayor




